SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL

MACKEREL COMMITTEE

Doubletree by Hilton Oceanfront Hotel Atlantic Beach, North Carolina

December 10, 2015

Committee Members:

Ben Hartig, Chair Anna Beckwith Zack Bowen Dr. Roy Crabtree Charlie Phillips

Council Members:

Chester Brewer Jack Cox Jessica McCawley

Council Staff:

Robert Mahood Kim Iverson Roger Pugliese Dr. Mike Errigo Chip Collier John Carmichael Julie O'Dell

Participants/Observers:

Monica Smit-Brunello Dr. Jack McGovern Erika Burgess Tracy Dunn Dr. Michelle Duval, Vice-Chair Mel Bell Chris Conklin Doug Haymans

Mark Brown Dr. Wilson Laney LTJG Tara Pray

Gregg Waugh Amber Von Harten Myra Brouwer Dr. Kari MacLauchlin Dr. Brian Cheuvront Mike Collins

Dr. Bonnie Ponwith Scott Sandorf Kevin Anson

Additional observers attached

The Mackerel Committee of the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council convened in the Doubletree by Hilton Oceanfront Hotel, Thursday morning, December 10, 2015, and was called to order at 9:00 o'clock a.m. by Chairmen Ben Hartig.

MR. HARTIG: The first item of business is approval of the agenda. Are there any changes to the agenda? Seeing none the agenda is approved. The next order of business is to approve the minutes from our last meeting. Are there any changes, corrections, deletions to the minutes? Seeing none; the minutes are approved. All right, that brings us to status reports, National Marine Fishery Service, Commercial ACL report, Jack.

DR. McGOVERN: These are landings from the Science Center through today. They were updated from what's in your briefing book, and they were assembled by Sue Gerhardt in our office along with Dr. Ponwith's staff. These slides are presented in a similar manner as they've been done in previous year. There are cumulative landings from the fishing years of 2010 through 2014 and then monthly and cumulative for the current year.

Amendment 20B established earlier this year a northern zone and a southern zone. The northern zone has a quota of about 1.3 million pounds and the southern zone about 2.6 million pounds. We see that the northern zone quota is at about 18 percent, landings are 18 percent of the quota, southern zone about 32 percent and this is the cumulative and you can see where it compares. It is less than it was in all the previous fishing years.

Moving down to Spanish, here is Spanish set up the same way, and it has also a northern zone and a southern zone. The southern zone quota is about 2.7 million pounds and northern quota is about 662,000 pounds. The northern zone is at 85 percent of the quota, and it looks like we're not going to meet that quota this year based on projections provided by the Science Center.

The southern zone is at 25 percent of its quota, and the total landings so far this year are about 1.2 million pounds, and landings are less than they were in previous years. Then moving down to cobia, cobia now has an East Coast Florida quota of 70,000 pounds and an Atlanta quota of 60,000 pounds. The Atlantic group is at 74 percent of its quota and it's on the calendar year. The East Coast Zone is at 73 percent of its quota; and that concludes my report.

MR. HARTIG: All right the next item of business is the Recreational ACL report. Are you going to do that as well? Thank you, sir.

DR. McGOVERN: These are mackerel landings that are put together by folks in our office along with Dr. Ponwith's staff. They are set up just like the snapper grouper landings. It shows 2014, final landings and also 2015 landings through Wave 4, and it includes both MRIP and headboat landings. These are for the 2013/2014 fishing year. Cobia met 82 percent of its recreational ACL, king mackerel 15 percent and Spanish 73 percent. Now this is for the current fishing year, and we see we have, as I have talked about before there is Atlantic East Coast Zone and East Florida Zone and a New York to Georgia Zone, and the New York to Georgia Zone has exceeded its ACL.

The East Florida Zone is at 41 percent, mackerel is at 19 percent and Spanish is at 32 percent. I think Mike or Nick at the last meeting talked about this overage of the ACL for cobia, and that

most of the landings are from Wave 3 off of North Carolina and Virginia. This shows the landings by sector for kind mackerel and also Spanish.

We can see the private sector dominates the landings, and this shows it graphically and that we're far below the ACL. For Spanish, again, the private sector dominates landings. We also showed the increase in the ACL recently and we're well below the ACL. Any questions on that?

MR. HARTIG: Yes, you've got a SERO up there for Spanish.

DR. McGOVERN: Well, we'll fix that.

MR. HARTIG: Any questions for Jack? I'm sorry I neglected to do that for the commercial landings, sorry about that.

DR. DUVAL: Remind me what the accountability measures are for cobia.

DR. McGOVERN: For cobia, if the sum of the recreational and commercial landings exceed the stock ACL and the stock is overfished, then the ACL is reduced the following year. Cobia is not overfished. But if the sum of the recreational landings exceeds the ACL, and that is going to be the case, the length of the following season will be reduced to the amount necessary that the landings don't exceed the ACT.

DR. DUVAL: That the landings don't exceed the ACT. Okay.

MR. BROWN: Jack, how do you calculate that?

DR. McGOVERN: How do you calculate the ACT or how do you determine the length of the season? Our folks would do projections based on past landings to determine when the ACT would be met. That is what we do for a lot of recreational species.

MR. HARTIG: I'll go right down the line.

MR. COX: Yes, I was going to just comment that we've really seen a good fall migration of cobia that we normally hadn't seen this year. In the last four weeks, we have really had some nice landings, almost like our spring run of cobia. It has been kind of unusual, but it has been good to see them.

MR. HARTIG: Yes, maybe with the warmer early winter they went back later, who knows?

MR. BOWEN: Dr. McGovern, that's a combined ACT with commercial and recreational, if that is exceeded you said combined?

DR. McGOVERN: No, you compare the landings to the total stock ACL, and so the recreational and the commercial ACL is exceeded and you have an overage in the recreational sector, then the following year the season length is restricted to the amount that would achieve the ACT.

MR. BELL: Yes, Jack, we've talked about that calculation for cobia. About when do you think we would be able to kind of know what the projection is for the season?

DR. McGOVERN: I think our folks would try to do projections at the beginning of the year, when we get all the landings in. But the really high landings are in Wave 3, so I expect that is probably when we would need to have an in-season closure next year.

MR. BOWEN: For the record, our constituents are going to go nuts when we close that cobia May/June. I mean you talking about public meetings and comments; we're going to get them. I just want everybody to be prepared, get ready.

MS. BECKWITH: I would like, I guess, some clarification, so when I start getting questions about this potential closure, because it will personal impact our charter guys pretty dramaticly in North Carolina. How much of this was based on sort of MRIP? What are the PSEs around those numbers?

I mean, that sort of information would be useful, because if we're assuming as occasionally happens with some of our MRIP numbers. If the PSEs are really high, and that is causing the closure, then I would like to have the information in order to defend this potential closure if I have to do that.

DR. McGOVERN: We'll put together talking points ourselves for when we talk to the public. I could provide those to the council as well. But we do have information on the PSEs. I know that Mike Larkin in our office has contacted Dave Van Voorhees and Headquarters to verify that the numbers are correct and all that. We certainly will put together talking points and the discussion of the data and all that.

DR. DUVAL: Yes, I would suspect that the PSEs around cobia are not like something like hogfish or snowy grouper or blueline; that they're going to be much lower. I think the other thing that I was going to ask about is the framework procedure. If we're looking at this again, if we need to, we ought to think about adjusting the bag limit down to one fish.

I think this is something where if there was the kind of flexibility that HMS seems to have that we could provide the Regional Administrator, if we're seeing that those catch rates are going up so dramatically, having an in-season adjustment from that two fish bag limit down to one fish bag limit in order to prevent an overage of the ACL, and not put us in a situation where we might have to reduce the length of that season the following year would be a good thing.

We tried really quickly before the meeting to look up what the actual rule language in the Federal Register, and just didn't get around to it. But I would be interested in seeing that and getting Monica's perspective on the ability to do something like that so that we don't face these kinds of ugly situations.

MR. HARTIG: I certainly concur with that. I wouldn't like to see that happen.

MR. BROWN: Yes, ugly was a good word. I talked to Mel about this back at the September meeting and how this was such a huge percentage over the ACL and everything. Then all of a sudden I started catching a lot of cobia this fall and I was confused. If I had had to try to get a hold of staff and find out what was going on with the regulations, because I just didn't know

exactly. What I'm saying is, if I'm confused you know we need to have some sort of a good way to translate this to the public too, through some sort of method.

MR. HARTIG: Yes, and it sounds like Jack is willing to do that so we will. Any other questions, go ahead, Mel?

MR. BELL: I was just going to say that this was a very good year early on, our spring season our CPUE for cobia in our charterboat data and all went way up. Our landings went way up in federal waters, and then the state waters basically crashed. People were saying they were seeing a lot of cobia; yes, there were a lot of cobia out there, particularly on the reefs and all. It was a good year, which would result in good landings, which it did.

MS. BECKWITH: The amendment that has all of our new AMs moving through is which one?

DR. McGOVERN: It is Comprehensive AM and Dolphin Allocation Amendment and that doesn't address mackerel that is snapper grouper and golden crab.

MS. BECKWITH: Well, darn, wasn't that an oversight.

MR. ERRIGO: Pretty crowded at the table here. I was just looking at the MRIP numbers, I just wanted to add. It looks like in terms of numbers of cobia landed in the South Atlantic, we landed about the same number of fish in 2015 as we did in 2014, but the weight or the biomass landed is significantly higher.

Instead of like 875,000-ish pounds we landed like 1.2 million or something along those lines; according to the website. I know the weights from the Science Center are a bit different. Is it just that the encountered fish were significantly larger and therefore the biomass and that is how come we busted the ACL? It seems like we landed the same number of fish.

DR. McGOVERN: I haven't looked at the data so I can't answer that question.

DR. ERRIGO: It just seemed like an interesting conundrum, because catch rates are the same and have been, in fact, for the last three years we landed about the same number of fish, but for some reason in 2015 the biomass is significantly higher.

MR. HARTIG: Well, it will be interesting to go back and look at them and intercept how many of those recreational cobia were actually measured to get that number. That would be a really good place to start, to see what the difference was between the three years. Hopefully, we can do that.

MS. BECKWITH: Roy, give us a way forward. What framework amendment could we work through to at last assure that if we had to add in a step down to one fish in order to retain the season open? I know we don't like being reactionary, we're trying not to shove new amendments in. But closing the cobia season next year would be an atrocity.

I guess our guys would probably prefer to have a one fish bag limit than a full closure. Ideally, that verbiage would allow the two fish bag limit to stand unless it was projected to close a season

earlier. Zack has probably got something to add to that, but I don't know how to move this forward. If we can put some verbiage into - well we can't - into 26.

But just some ways forward, because we don't have a lot of species that are sort of the bread and butter species for the charter guys and this is one of them. With as much time as we spend taking care of the commercial needs, this is one that is pretty important. I can't let this one fall.

DR. CRABTREE: Well, maybe you just need to do a framework amendment, but you guys have a workload issue so you're going to have to set some priorities and decide what you're going to do and what you're not. Personally, I think step downs like this won't work, and if you want this fishery to stay open you just go to one fish.

I don't even know if that's going to keep it open, but with these step downs, by the time you get to the step down you've already caught most of it, and with the uncertainties of tracking the quotas and MRIP catch levels and all that. I suspect that is not going to be all that successful. I mean, you've just got to make some decisions about what you want to do. We can do frameworks pretty quickly; the trouble is we have too many frameworks and too many things we're trying to do.

MR. HARTIG: Kari, did you want to add to that or not?

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: No, I don't want to. That covered it.

MR. BOWEN: To Anna's point. Even reducing a bag limit, but also an increase in the minimum size limit, just to see if we can do everything we can to keep this fishery open. I'm with Anna. If it closes it is going to be a real hardship for the charter guys who have fought to just keep their business and to shift their fishery effort from the other hardships that we've bared since 2007, since the reauthorization. I want to do everything we possibly can to try to keep this fishery open.

MR. BROWN: You said one fish; you were talking about one fish per person or one per boat?

MS. BECKWITH: No, clearly one per person. I think the two fish bag limit has been great. It sounds like it's a weight issue, it is not a numbers issue. To me, that indicates that what the population is actually really healthy if the size of the fish is getting larger. We have a healthy population; unfortunately, we don't have another stock assessment that is going to happen on this species in the foreseeable future, so we're sort of stuck with what we've got.

If all of a sudden you're hearing that we've caught the same number but the weights have increased. I mean that is an indication of a healthy population. We're going to, I don't -

MR. BROWN: Is it two per person throughout our range? Commercial. Okay. Would we be able to change it to one per person with any type of a vote through this meeting? Can we make a motion to do that or not?

MR. HARTIG: I'm going to let the Chairman chime in here.

DR. DUVAL: The committee can do whatever it chooses to do. Roy is right though. We do have workload issues. I mean, you can make a motion to begin a regulatory amendment to reduce the bag limit to one fish, and we can see how the priorities fall out at Executive Finance. There are only so many slots to go.

I am sure, given what Dr. McGovern said, that the folks at MRIP are looking at those numbers, are looking at the average weights and we'll get some feedback on that, I would hope, by March. Just looking at the accountability measures that we have in the file, whether or not there is a payback currently looks like it is based on a moving average.

If the stock is overfished and the total ACL is exceeded, as Jack said, it is not overfished, it is that the total ACL is exceeded; and it looks like we're still using that moving average approach for cobia. There may be a shortening of the season, but I think we're just going to have to see how the numbers fall out. Just ask everybody to be mindful of the workload and not getting into this reactionary thing. I was just putting forward that it would be great if we had a little bit more flexibility in being able to adjust bag limits during the season.

MR. HARTIG: Jack, thank you for being patient.

MR. COX: No, that's fine. I know it would be devastating to our charterboat guys. I mean, it's huge, especially in the spring of the year in our area to close that season. We would need to do whatever we possibly could, dropping back to one fish per person recreational and commercial if we had to, just to keep access to that fishery. But to completely close it would be terrible. My other question is when is the spawning season of cobia? How many times a year do they spawn?

MR. BELL: I can only speak for what we see down there, we're real in tune with the spawning because it occurs, at least for that distinct population segment, so we see it peaks in May for us in side waters, but they are also probably spawning offshore as well around May. It probably starts late April, goes through July, but it sort of peaks for us at least on those inshore fish in May. That is why, I'll talks about that later, but we're taking some action ourselves related to state water stuff, spring. It may be that there are other groups that spawn later on, but that is what we see for sure.

MR. HARTIG: Yes, I don't know that spawning is going to enter into it. All the catches occur, well not all of them, but most of the catches occur during that timeframe when they spawn. We've got a healthy stock. We've got a really restrictive bag limit. If you all want to put that on here and we get it into priorities, I mean, somebody needs to make a motion that you want to see some analysis done with one fish.

MR. BOWEN: To Dr. Duval's point. You know, there is a small window where we catch these fish. The charter guys depend on them, and it is just like the MRIP landings show in that Wave 3, which I think is May/June. An idea just to throw out for the committee is changing the start date to the fishing year to maybe Wave 3. Charter guys, recreational guys in my area depend on them during that Wave 3 and then after the water gets hot, and I'm speaking for my area, they move on to spadefish or jacks or something else that are around the distance offshore. Maybe changing the start date to the fishing year to May 1st might help us a little bit; again just food for thought to the committee and we can decide as a group what we should or want to do.

MR. HARTIG: Well, it breaks into; you can change the fishing year all you want. The Wave 3 catches, what were the level of that one wave was, if that occurs again it doesn't matter really what you do to the season, because the wave is going to shut you down, period. Is it a function of the sampling frame again? I don't know. I don't know how that has worked out for cobia.

MR. BOWEN: Just for later in the day. Maybe keep this in mind, but when that charterboat electronic reporting amendment comes about, if we had that in place, we might not be having to deal with this right here right now.

MR. HARTIG: Well, I'm going to take Mark's question, but this is an extremely important fishery for you all and I understand that. I may, since you're having the discussion here can we have some more discussion between now and Full Council? Think about what you guys want to do and then at Full Council, bring a motion before the mackerel committee, before we end the mackerel committee, and we can get – no, just leave it at mackerel.

MS. BECKWITH: Sorry, I meant if we don't move it forward, then it wouldn't be on the list of considerations during the discussion in Executive Finance.

DR. DUVAL: I'm sure it will be up for discussion, because people are already talking about it and thinking about it. Whether or not there is a motion here or at full council, we're going to be discussing what slots are available to do anything. Gregg is at the table.

MR. WAUGH: Just to remind folks, in Amendment 18, this is Mackerel Amendment 18 when we set up the current regulations. What you considered was a commercial trip limit of two or one per day. You talked about reducing the recreational possession limit from two to one cobia per person per day.

You had an alternative to reduce recreational bag limit from two to one cobia per vessel per day. Establish a closed season for the recreational fishery and the final one was reduce the recreational possession limit from two to one cobia per person per day during the spawning season. That was specified as April 1 through June 30.

I think what you want to look at is a regulatory amendment that look at is a regulatory amendment that looks at the full range of alternatives. I think Roy has a valid point with the step down in that Wave 3 being so high, you are not going to be able to use a step down. You've got a range of alternatives that we looked at in Amendment 18, we can pull those up. But I think in terms of you all looking at this, you would want to add a regulatory amendment for cobia to the list, and then Executive Finance can figure out where to put that in.

DR. CRABTREE: I mean, under any circumstance, you aren't going to get this done in time to effect next year, because our next meeting is when, Gregg, March? Even if you took final action on a regulatory amendment then, likely the fishery would be closed before we got it put in place. You know, if you've got recreational fisheries, that it is important to you that they don't close. If they're even catching close to 75 percent of the ACL, you need to tighten it up. You need these fisheries catching 50, 60 percent of their ACLs, if you really want to be sure they are not going to close; because these catches vary a lot from year to year.

You've got to have a really big cushion or there is some likelihood that you're going to have good recruitment, a lot of fish, effort is going to spike up and it is going to end up closing. But I don't really see anything that could be done at this stage that would affect what happens next year.

MR. HARTIG: Well, it is exacerbated by the growth rates of cobia, they grow like dolphin. They grow very quickly. They get big very quick, so if you get a cohort that's moving through the fishery in any three years after the recruitment, you're going to have these great big fish that are going to cause some real problems.

DR. CRABTREE: It is unfortunate and maybe unforeseen by those who put this requirement in place, but I suspect for recreational fisheries, we often close the fishery because things have gotten really good. But because we don't have a stock assessment to tell us, we don't know whether high catches mean high fishing mortality rates, or it means high recruitment and lots of fish; and we don't have a real way to scale those. Without some sort of index of recruitment that allows us to see these year classes coming, and raise the ACLs before they hit the fishery.

We probably are going to quite often end up hitting ACLs and triggering accountability measures, because there are lots of fish, and that is going to enrage fishermen and we're going to hear more and more of the management doesn't match what I'm seeing on the water kind of thing. But until we figure out some way to deal with that, that is what we're stuck with at the moment.

MS. BECKWITH: It is interesting to hear you say that, Roy, because that makes a lot of sense that we should only be shooting for a 50 or 60 percent to assure that these fisheries are not going to close. And yet, when we only hit 50 or 60 percent of our ACLs, then we get it from the other side, the commercial guys saying well, you're not utilizing your ACL. You're not reaching your optimum yield; you know poke, poke, prod, prod, prod, give us your fish.

It is almost like the recreational are in a no win situation. We allow bag limits and access to the fishery that is going to achieve our ACLs in order to defend retaining our own ACLs, or if we assure that the fisheries are not going to close by our management choices; then we've got pushback from the commercial guys that it's not being fully utilized for the benefit of the nation.

It is an interesting situation in which we find ourselves. But I will say that again, and Michelle and I are going to keep beating this drum, a little bit like state quotas. We need to start writing into all of our new amendments the idea of a range of bag limits or trip limits that we can adjust as needed so we don't have to go through the whole framework process and put ourselves in this situation; and I don't know how we do that. Monica is thinking about it; but at some point we've got to get there.

DR. CRABTREE: I think that is why there has been discussion of some sort of temporary shift in allocations so that if you did see a jump like this you could pull it back. But yes, it is a real conundrum. You know the purpose of the framework is to allow us to make more quick changes on things. Part of our trouble is every time we do a framework, we add it up with a whole bunch of whole new alternatives and make it complicated, and then it takes a long time to do it. We need a certain amount of discipline for these things and keep them simple. But under any event, if you're going to change these things, you've got to go out for public comment with the Rule, and that means it is going to take several months to get it done, generally. I'm not sure if there is a solution to that.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: Just to remind everyone, the South Atlantic manages cobia through New York, and there is a substantial recreational fishery in Virginia. But we would take those to public hearing at least through webinar in the Mid-Atlantic, and then possibly going to a Mid-Atlantic meeting.

MR. HARTIG: On the record, Joe's not here, but we'll put a regulatory amendment on the docket during Executive Finance to address cobia. I think from the conversation we had today, that is what you all want to do. We don't have to be specific about what you really want in it now, but it will be in your priorities for you to look at; having said that. Mark.

MR. BROWN: I'm beating my head against the table right now, okay.

MR. HARTIG: Doug, you haven't said a thing, go ahead, Doug.

MR. HAYMANS: I was really thinking about what Roy was saying and that if we hadn't split this quota up, we would be okay right now. Similar to the way we set up the new northern zone for mackerel, where Florida and North Carolina can negotiate some quota. I mean, it would have been nice if we set this up in a similar manner, because we're under the overall ACL. But anyway, I was just thinking through that.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: The Florida East Coast quota is because it is a Gulf stock, so you can't trade between the Florida East Coast and the Atlantic stock.

MR. HAYMANS: If we had set it up that way we could.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: No, no, no, it is considered a Gulf stock so you can't. You are not working on those ACLs. That is why it is separate.

MR. BOWEN: I would just like to thank Dr. Crabtree for what he just said. It was like a light came on in my head when you said, and I'm paraphrasing, that we need to stay around 50 to 60 percent of our ACLs on the recreational sector, because our effort fluctuates so much. It just hit me like a ton of bricks when you said that. It makes me really rethink even snapper grouper yesterday about the sea bass and our limits. I just wanted to put on record, thank you for saying that because it is 100 percent accurate.

MR. CONKLIN: Well, I had some ideas on some stuff I wanted to include there seen in the draft amendment or whatever, but since you said we don't need to talk about that right now, we're not going to talk about it.

MR. HARTIG: Yes, what I would like you all to do is think about what you want in the regulatory amendment and what we can actually accomplish in a regulatory amendment. That is another thing, because some of that you may not be able to do in a regulatory amendment; what you're thinking about. But think about what you want in a regulatory amendment and full council in mackerel we'll put something up there.

MR. CONKLIN: Just one more thing. We're looking at protecting, you know bouncing ideas around for protecting hogfish, which aren't overfished or going overfishing up in our region here during the spawn and then now we're fishing cobia during the spawn and nobody is talking about having any kind of more restrictive limits on them during the spawn. It's kind of going against each other's ideas.

MR. HARTIG: That is going to be a discussion for another day. I understand how critical this is. Go ahead, Monica.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Just food for thought. The Gulf manages many of their species to an annual catch target ACT, and that is a buffer between the ACL and the ACT, so if they hit the ACT they haven't hit the ACL; but they manage to that and they have different management measures that are triggered because of that. But with that, they also have an ACT Control Rule, which National Standard 1 Guidelines recommended.

If you're going to manage to an ACT you have an ACT Control Rule, so there are some things to think about. You all have ACTs in some of your recreational fisheries, and I haven't pushed an ACT Control Rule too hard, because you are not managing to the ACT. But once you do, you should think about probably involving the SSC or whatever you need to do to come up with an ACT Control Rule. That is something for you to think about when you're considering all of these things.

MR. HARTIG: Well, we had a broad conversation this morning. I mean, we covered a lot of ground with cobia. I'll leave it at that. But thank you. I appreciate that insight. All right, so now we're going to go into Draft Amendment 26, and I'll turn it over to Kari.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: Well, Attachment 3A is the Draft Document. Attachment 3D is the Decision Document that we'll be going through. You received a revised one. The only difference with the second one you received last week is that I added the Gulf Mackerel AP recommendations to it; and then the Gulf Mackerel Committee meeting report from their October meeting is in there, and then the Gulf APs meeting report.

I'm not going to go through those Gulf meeting reports; I will just have them in there for your reference. Just to remind everyone with Amendment 26, this will modify the management and stock boundary for Gulf and Atlantic king mackerel, abate the biological reference point and the ABC, OY, ACLs, ACTs, considers an incident catch allowance for Atlantic king mackerel caught in the shark gillnet fishery and then we have some management measures to establish a split season commercial quota for the southern zone.

Then an action to look at boundaries and trip limits for a new Florida East Coast Management Zone. There are several Gulf king mackerel actions to revise their ACL based on the new stock assessment, revise their commercial zone quotas, the recreational/commercial allocation and then modifying the recreational bag limit. The tentative timeline is for the South Atlantic to review this and approve for public hearing; select preferreds if you would like to do that. Then in January and February the South Atlantic and the Gulf will be holding their public hearings. The Gulf approved for public hearing in October.

In March they'll review public comments, take final action and then in April the Gulf will review and take final action; and we hope to submit that in April or May. You approved that purpose and need. That is in the document, June, 2015. I'll go right into Action 1. This would adjust the management boundary for Gulf and Atlantic king mackerel.

With the stock assessment, the approach used was at the mixing zone around the Keys. This action would adjust those management boundaries to kind of line up with the stock boundary that was used in the stock assessment. You have your no action alternative. Alternative 2 would establish that boundary at the regulatory boundary between the Gulf and South Atlantic.

The South Atlantic Council would be responsible for management measures in the new mixing zone, which is just south of the Keys. Alternative 3, which the Gulf Council selected as their preferred alternative and also the Gulf and South Atlantic APs also support; establishes a single year round boundary at the Miami/Dade/Monroe County Line.

This way the Gulf Council would be responsible for management measures in the mixing zone, which since the year three is that area south of the Keys with the lines in it. This would allow for the fishermen who are working in the Keys, they would have just the Gulf responsible for those management measures and give them consistency for the Keys fishermen. Again the Gulf selected Alternative 3 as their preferred, and then both APs also support Alternative 3 as the preferred. You can add or remove any alternatives or select a preferred alternative.

DR. DUVAL: I would like to make a motion to select Alternative 3 under Action 1 as a preferred alternative.

MR. HARTIG: Motion by Michelle, seconded by Chris. Discussion. Go ahead, Chester.

MR. BREWER: I don't necessarily disagree, but I would point out that you are going to have again the problem of being on one side of a Key and having one set of rules perhaps, and being on the other side of the Key and having a different set of rules. I kind of favor going up to the Shark Point Area or the Monroe/Dade County Line on the Gulf side for that reason.

DR. DUVAL: Definitely appreciate those comments. My thinking is that this area, by putting the boundary at the Dade/Monroe County Line you're getting all of that limited king mackerel gillnet fishery under one management unit, instead of us having to deal with a gear that is not legally allowed in that area within our jurisdiction, and that way we're not dealing with those cross-jurisdictional issues or trying to make an exemption for a particular gear. That was what I saw as the problem, so that is why I was putting this forward as a potential solution.

MR. HARTIG: All right that was what I was going to say, so any other discussion? Is there any objection to this motion? Seeing none; that motion is approved.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: The next action, Action 2 updates the reference points; so the MSY, MSST, MFMT, OFL, and revise the annual catch limit and recreational annual catch target for Atlantic king mackerel. This first part here on Document Page 7, is just the language that updates those biological reference points for the fishery management plan.

You approved this language in June, so you don't need to do anything. Moving to Page 8, Action 2-1, this revises the acceptable biological catch for Atlantic king mackerel. There are four alternatives here, the no action alternative, and then we have Alternative 2, which will revise the ABC based on the recommendation from the SSC for an ABC under a high recruitment scenario.

Alternative 3 would revise the ABC for under a medium recruitment scenario, and Alternative 4 revises the ABC for under a low recruitment scenario. Remember when the SSC reviewed the stock assessment they provided three different sets of possible ABCs, depending on if the council was comfortable setting those ABCs under a high, medium or low recruitment scenario.

I have these examples in Table 3 of what those would be, under each what the ABC would be. Now you remember the ABC is just the cap, and then you would set the annual catch limit either at that or under it. The South Atlantic AP recommended Alternative 2 as the preferred; that is the ABC under a high recruitment scenario, with a review after two years to evaluate if it's the appropriate ABC level.

The Gulf AP also recommended Alternative 2 as the preferred alternative. When we went to scoping in January, we did have several commenter's that felt that the council could set the ABC and ACL and the highest level possible. Folks reported there was an abundance of small fish, and that they felt there is a period of high recruitment.

There haven't been any hurricanes and other conditions that the fishermen felt supported setting it at a high recruitment scenario. There were some folks that felt like the council should be a little more conservative and set it at a medium recruitment ABC.

MR. HARTIG: I would just add that as Kari is talking to you about what the AP has done, we also had a meeting down there in our area. I actually bought a projector and joined the technology of this century, and actually projected the PDF for the fishermen, to let them get acquainted with this so when they would come to hearings they'll be able to give some good comments.

But they also had a number of suggestions that came out of that meeting. As we go through this, there were about 35 meeting there, three members of the AP and the Chairman of the AP was at that meeting. It was a good meeting; it was a good diverse group of fishermen from the whole breadth of Florida.

It was good, we had some compromises and we'll be able to actually shorten this document some as we go through it, which was a very good thing. I'll add those as we go. On this we would need a motion for one of the recruitment scenarios, based on the SSCs suggestions. The AP made that recommendation and the fishermen from our area also supported that high recruitment scenario for the ABC. Oh, go ahead, Jack. Chester.

MR. BREWER: I would like to move that we select as our preferred Alternative 2 under Action 2-1.

MR. HARTIG: Motion by Chester second by Chris. Discussion? Is there any objection to this motion? Bonnie, go ahead.

DR. PONWITH: Just from the standpoint of discussion. It is a challenging situation, because typically the ABC advice comes from the SSC and is a definitive number, and it gives you a starting point to discuss how to interpret that in terms of applying an ACL. It is less common when there is a range of alternatives available for ABC; and ABC again is this science oriented advice, it is the advice that the SSC owes you.

The fact that they would give you a range to me means that there is scientific uncertainty in terms of that recruitment. Certainly as you contemplate the choices available to you, you want to think in terms of that scientific uncertainty not the management uncertainty, which is what you're taking into consideration when you set the ACLs.

The thing that raises a concern is when we see the advisory panel, not that they made a recommendation but that it is accompanied by a, with a review after two years to evaluate if it is the appropriate ABC level. When I see that it is what mechanism would you use in two years? Is it another stock assessment? Is it a fishery independent collection, where you're looking for recruitment patterns?

Is it polling the industry in how many small fish? Where would a threshold be to know whether you had a high, medium or low? There are some concerns around that. Just speaking purely from a science standpoint, to me it seems prudent to reside in middle ground on this, in terms of tolerance for risk that you're wrong on making a selection on the ABC advice.

Because that is really what it's about, not how many fish do I get out of this but more what is the tolerance of the council for a risk from a science standpoint that the choice they make is wrong? Again that risk comes as a double-edged sword. If you are too conservative its foregone fishing opportunity, if you're not conservative enough it is chipping away at the biomass of that stock in a way that may compromise the long term sustainability of that.

MR. HARTIG: Bonnie, I really appreciate that. I appreciate the scientific insight that goes into this. This is plowing new ground, basically. This is the first time we've actually been able to convince the assessment scientists to give us a range if we happened to see a good recruitment year class coming in.

Now, the new year class observations are anecdotal, they absolutely are. They haven't been through the science protocol; they haven't been reviewed by the scientific community to say that you have a high recruitment. Now, having said that it is also only one year that we've seen these fish enter the fishery, they will become cohorts this year.

From this point, from what we're thinking is at the end of this season we would go back and ask the Center to rerun the projections, look at the recruitment and look at the landings that have occurred, look at the size, the comp data that we have. That is, I think, how we would want to proceed with this review. We had talked about this some at the assessment itself, and how we could do it. I think the intent now would be to make sure that we go back at the end of this season, to find out from our scientists if it was; and if it comes out that it's not, we can change it the very next year we could change our catch levels through the expedited framework process in one year and have new catch levels for the stock. For me, I don't think with what we've set up, now I don't know if we can accomplish that. I mean that is going to be working with you and your assessment scientists, but they were onboard when we talked about it. Their being onboard and you being able to figure out how to do it are two completely different things, and I understand that.

But the intent the SSC said we should do this, the AP said should we do this, and the fishermen's group that we had that I was a part of said we should do this. To me, as we step outside the box in this type of a scenario. If we can include the science side in being able to do that; I think it would go a long way in the future of looking at how we do these types of things when we get a little more flexibility in the process.

Hopefully, we can work together and make this happen, because this is like I said, the first time this has happened and it looks like it is a really good idea to try and do. We can get the industry season anecdotal update in recruitment. Now, we go do the science side after we have cohorts entered in the fishery and say; is that really what is happening? I think we can inform all of your concerns by doing that after this year's catch. We've got a motion, we've had some discussion. Is there any other discussion?

DR. McGOVERN: Given Bonnie's discussion or rationale, I would like to make a substitute motion for Alternative 3, instead of Alternative 2; given the scientific uncertainty and all the rationale that Bonnie provided.

MR. HARTIG: Substitute motion by Jack, is there a second to Jack's motion? Second by **Anna.** Go ahead, Jessica.

MS. McCAWLEY: I think, if we choose anything other than the high recruitment scenario, then we can't choose the SSCs ACL, maybe?

MR. HARTIG: Yes, that is the other complicating factor in this situation. We had a recommendation that we could have some flexibility in choosing the ABC, but the SSC went ahead and suggested an ACL that we should pick. That again is another wrinkle in how this was moving forward.

There are moving parts to this. That is an observation that I was not aware of. I don't know how you want to proceed with this from here. I think the intent was to step down possibly the high recruitment scenario in the ACL portion of this amendment. That would accomplish some of what you're trying to do, Jack. I don't know if it gets you to all the way where you want to go.

We have a substitute motion by Jack, we have a second. Further discussion on that? Okay, all those in favor of the substitute motion; raise your hand. Three in favor, all those opposed; four opposed; the motion fails. That brings us to the main motion, which was ABC at the high recruitment scenario. Is there any further discussion on that? Is there any objection to that? Seeing none; that motion is approved. I think we're going to get somewhere near, so we'll see. The next Action 2-2 will be revise the ACLs, commercial quotas and recreational ACT for the Atlantic migratory group king mackerel. Kari is getting something up there now, I think. DR. MacLAUCHLIN: Action 2-2 sets the ACLs, which would set those commercial quotas for the southern and the northern zone and the recreational annual catch target for Atlantic king mackerel. Now in Appendix E in the Draft Amendment 26 document, we have the document that shows how the northern and southern zone quotas will work with a new stock boundary.

When you set those percentages in 20B, those will be adjusted based on the new stock boundary and all of that information about how those will be recalculated is in Appendix E. We've talked about that before. We have the no action alternative. Then we have the Alternative 2, which sets ACL equal to OY equal to ABC. This is a South Atlantic AP recommended.

Alternative 3 sets the ACL at the deterministic equilibrium yield at F at 30 percent SPR, which is 12.7 million pounds for all four years. This is the South Atlantic's SSC and the Gulf AP recommended this in November. Alternative 4 would set the ACL at 75 percent of that deterministic equilibrium yield, which is 11.6 million pounds.

Then Alternative 5 establishes the ACL at 90 percent of the ABC, based on the ABC level that you select in Action 2-1. I have the tables in here that would show what the possible outcomes would be with your ACL equals ABC under high, medium and low. Then Table 5 shows what it would be under 90 percent of your ABC under high, medium and low. The South Atlantic AP recommendation was Alternative 2, so that is setting the ACL equal to ABC under a high recruitment scenario in 2-1.

There were some members that had concerns about that if the high recruitment ABC was not appropriate. That is why that motion was amended to add that recommendation to look at it after two years. There were some AP members who expressed concern about how long a framework amendment would take if you wanted to change the annual catch limit.

The Gulf AP selected Alternative 3, which is the South Atlantic SSC recommendation for 12.7 million pounds. They felt that that constant catch for those four years would help protect the stock if there was an issue with recruitment. It would be more conservative annual catch limit than Alternative 2, and would not affect either sector, because the landings have been below those annual catch limits in recent years.

When we took it to scoping, we did have several commenter's from the public that supported setting that ACL at the highest level possible, so under the high recruitment ABC; because of that anecdotal information that we have received from fishermen about the small fish and good recruitment. You can add or remove any alternatives, and you can select a preferred alternative. On Page 13 I just have the alternatives so you can see them without all the tables and that information.

DR. DUVAL: This is a tough one. I am more inclined to fall in line with what the SSC has recommended, just because I think that having a stable ACL is better for the fishery, and it seems like it would be something that the industry would support. Obviously, we've gotten a lot of comments in favor of keeping things at the highest level possible. I would not be, given that we have selected the high recruitment scenario under Action 2-1, I would not be comfortable at setting ACL equal to ABC. If we were going to do something like that, I would suggest bumping it down to setting the ACL at 90 percent of the ABC. I would just love to hear some discussion from other folks regarding those different alternatives.

I have said my personal preference is for something as for the SSCs recommendation of Alternative 3. That is 12.7 million pounds. Our existing ACL right now is I think 10.4 million pounds, so that is still to me a significant jump and that would provide some stability, but if there are other thoughts around the table about setting ACL equal to ABC or some percentage of the ABC.

I could be swayed into supporting setting ACL at 90 percent of the ABC, which is I guess Alternative 5. I would just note that four years out it drops the total ACL below the 12.7, which is down to 11.4 so even below what the SSC had recommended. I would like to hear some more from other committee members.

MR. HARTIG: Yes, before I take discussion. You've got to be a little bit careful about how you compare what was taken out of the Atlantic previously to what is being taken out now, because you've added that East Coast Gulf, over a million pounds of catch during the winter is now within the Atlantic stock of king mackerel.

That is why the numbers are higher. You have to look at it in the context of, you know you're adding a substantial amount of harvest; both on recreational and commercial into this stock, based on that timeframe going back into the Atlantic fish from the Florida East Coast Sub Zone. That is something you've got to wrap your head around as we go through this.

MR. BREWER: I agree with Monica, did I say Monica, M, M what's the difference?

DR. DUVAL: I'm flattered you would equate me with Monica, Chester.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: I like it when you agree with me, Chester.

MR. BREWER: I am going to start over. I agree with Dr. Duval. I mean, the slightly more conservative alternative here seems to make sense. I would like to see a constant catch; I like to see ACL at least influenced by SPR, which is what this is doing. I understand SPR and have worked with that in the past.

This looks like sort of the middle of the road. We took the high recruitment scenario, now we can take the middle of the road. Even though, Ben, I understand what you're saying, I think we still don't run over what we've seen the historic catch be. It just seems like a pretty good way to go, to me.

DR. CRABTREE: Generally speaking, I would recommend against setting the ACL equal to the ABC, and there ought to probably be some buffer in there. But maybe it is too late in this amendment. But at some point I would like to see us get to setting an ACT below the ACL and managing actually to the ACT so the quotas are set at the ACT in all those things.

That way you can be pretty sure you stay below the ACL, and if we went to that we could set the ACL at the ABC level if you wanted to, and then set the ACT at 90 percent of it or something and mange to that. That would be a way to reduce the frequency that we have these ACL overruns that we worry about. But this document may be too far down the chute to look at those kinds of things.

MR. HARTIG: But it goes back to what Monica suggested earlier, looking at an ACT Control Rule. That is something we probably ought to do. We probably ought to do it across. I've had the same concerns as you, Roy. I mean we've done what we can for the reporting issues. I mean, for the commercial fishery we've got about as good as we can get it now.

I wasn't ready to do that until we got to where we are now. But now that we're there and we continue to see overages of some fisheries, I think we ought to react to those and probably go in that direction. But that is just me. Where are we? We have a motion from Chester, oh okay.

MR. BREWER: I move that under Action 2-2 that we select Alternative 3 as the preferred alternative.

MR. HARTIG: Motion by Chester, seconded by Chris. Further discussion? Go ahead, Roy.

DR. CRABTREE: I guess, as I just said, I would like to see us set the ACL a little below the ABC, and Chester's motion would set it equal to the ABC, right? No. How much? I'm sorry then.

MR. HARTIG: Other discussion?

DR. DUVAL: Yes, so just thinking about the additional catch that has been added to the stock. Previously, it was 50 percent of the harvest within the mixing zone when it was going all the way up the Florida East Coast was I guess allocated towards the Atlantic stock, and then 50 percent was allocated towards the Gulf stock. Correct?

MR. HARTIG: It's a little more complicated than that but yes; in general you're absolutely correct.

DR. DUVAL: Okay, so roughly. But now that entire chunk from the Miami/Dade Line forward, all is being tallied against the Atlantic ACL and only 50 percent of the harvest occurring within Monroe County is being tallied against our ACL, right?

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: The way we've been looking at it is kind of what would be considered the new Atlantic king, which is with the mixing zone the stock assessment used. When we calculated that part for the mixing zone, it was kind of complicated where it was like 50 percent of this during this period and 50 percent during this period. Relative to the rest of the region it is a really small amount. Mostly, we've been focusing on any king mackerel landings north of the Dade/Monroe Line.

DR. DUVAL: Okay. I guess - just trying to read into this a little bit. Perhaps some of the concern about using a constant catch at that equilibrium yield at the 30 percent SPR level, is that it potentially might not allow for increased harvest due to the change in the mixing zone boundary that is going to be tallied off against our accounting sheet, given the possibility that we are having some good recruitment. Am I capturing that concern appropriately? No, I'm not talking about the mixing zone.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: You are talking about the Florida East Coast Zone.

DR. DUVAL: I'm not talking about the Florida East Coast Zone; I'm talking about the whole Atlantic stock. I'm just trying to make sure that I capture and understand some of the concerns that have come from the AP and the public, with regard to preference for setting the ABC at the high recruitment scenario and then setting the ACL equal to the ABC.

My understanding is that, given the fact that we are now accountable for all of those Florida East Coast landings, both commercial and recreational, there may be some concern that if we were to use a constant catch scenario, there might not be enough ACL there to account for the additional harvest that is going to be tallied against our tally sheet; I guess is the most simplistic way I can think of putting it. We just need to be mindful of that. I thought you had some, yes those graphs.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: I have on the screen, and these were just for reference. I didn't want to overload everyone with a million tables and charts and everything, so I have them kind of on an "as needed" basis. I had made these graphics for Ben when he was going to meet with the fishermen last week.

What we have here, and I have to kind of explain it, because I didn't do a good job with this. But what this shows is we have our fishing years on the bottom here. Over here are the landings, king mackerel landings in the Southern Zone. That counts as whatever used to be called Atlantic or Gulf it didn't matter. If it was caught north of the Miami/Dade to South Carolina/North Carolina line, it was counted as these king mackerel landings.

The orange and blue up and down, these are the landings; either using a March through September, which is the light blue ones or the orange one which is March through October. Those are the two different seasons you were considering for Season 1. But they are about the same; you can see in a couple years maybe it's a little different.

The dark blue line is what Season 1 Southern Zone quota would be, based on those 12.7 million pounds. Then Alternative 3 and then this green one is the 75 percent of the Alternative 4, basically. You guys are considering this blue one. What you can see in the Southern Zone under this scenario, where this is at 60 percent of that Southern Zone quota would go to Season 1.

Most of the time they are going to be fine, but every once in a while if you have years like you had from 2009 to 2011, it is going to close early possibly. Ben can talk about what happened in those years, this is a big concern about what if we have those years. But overall, in Season 1, which is March through October, depending on what happens in March, usually in April, they could be shut down by August or September.

They probably would lose a little bit, a few months, two months or something. I don't think any projections would say they would shut down early, but in most years totally fine and the past few years much lower than what they would be allocated. Then in Season 2, which is October through February or November through February, same thing. We have the landings over here on the Y axis and then the yellow and the gray show what the actual landings were, and under those 12.7 million pounds, which is that blue line on top the landings from what the historic patterns have been, they will always be fine in Season 2.

It is just Season 1, and I don't think even if you sat that ABC equal to ACL under a high recruitment scenario, you still are going to have years. This is what that would look like. Here are the landings. Just whatever happened, the environmental conditions that allowed the fish to come in around 2009 through 2011, those years. It was a big year. But it is not common. Under any scenario, really, you would have a possibility of having an early closure due to that.

MR. HARTIG: The bottom line is we could possibly have closures, those two years are outliers. They are outliers because they were cold, 2010 was one of the colder winters we had. We had Gulf fish come around on our side again, which has not happened very often, and then we had the fish that normally stay off the Cape in Daytona in the winter. Everybody came together.

The Gulf fish came around to us off Jupiter. The winter fish that normally stay off Daytona came down to Jupiter, so everybody was in one spot off Jupiter; which used to happen commonly back in time. In fact, on a yearly basis, when winters were much stronger and colder, we would have that setup almost every year.

But due to the temperature changes of the winter that rarely happens. When all those fish came together in an area where they're close to shore, within three miles of the beach, you had a lot of effort and you had a lot of catch. That is what happened in those two years. I'll stop there because I'll have something to say later.

MR. BOWEN: I think that is an excellent point. In your professional experience or opinion, do you foresee that? I guess how often now does that happen, and do you expect it in the near future?

MR. HARTIG: You don't know, because it is a function of weather. If we have a very, very cold winter, it may happen this year. I mean with the El Niño they are talking about a really severe winter in the southern part of the United States during the later portion of the winter and into the early spring.

It could happen again this year. We'll see. Most years like Kari said; we'll be fine. The dynamics of the stock now has changed. There is a graph in there she has that shows you how over time when most of the fish were caught. But that is changing now, because the wintertime fishery is actually having more of an impact than the summer fishery is now.

We're facing conditions in our area in the spring and summer now, where we don't have access to the fish for very long because of the conditions. The water is much colder, we have more upwellings, and the fish are much more flighty. That dynamic is going to change. We are not going to be able to catch the level, no matter what the stock does.

I don't care how many fish you put in the ocean. If they are moving up and down the beach where we can't go, we're not going to catch them. I've been wrapped around the axle on this, I can't tell you how many different ways, upside down and crossways I've looked at this, trying to figure out where we should be. But I understand the concerns. The other part of being able to look at this after next season with the scientist, is to be able to look at this and they can give us another catch level recommendation based on if they see the recruitment, they see the catch levels, and they see cohorts. They could inform the next time we look at this and possibly give us, say well, you could take more fish or you could take less fish; however it works. You could be more informed about how you move forward in two years.

MR. BOWEN: You're the mackerel expert here in the fishermen. If you don't mind, do you mind taking off your Chairman's hat for a second and tell us what we've heard from Dr. Crabtree, we've heard from Dr. Duval, we've heard from Chester. I would like to hear from you on where you think we need to be; if you don't mind.

MR. HARTIG: No. After looking at this upside down and backwards, I think we should be a little more conservative going into this in the beginning, knowing that possibly we will have access to rerun projections after this next season to see where we are. I just think it is prudent, based on – it is a big change – the Atlantic stock, as Jack said, the landings aren't going up much in the Atlantic stock as it is currently managed now. There is a problem there.

The basic thing I see is that the wintertime fishery you see in this recruitment, the problem is we need to move that recruitment into the Atlantic stock in older and larger fish. That is why I would be a little more conservative. That is the bottom line. That is the bottom line that I see. Being a little more conservative here would help to do that.

MR. CONKLIN: Just curious, I know that a lot of people travel around to fish in that fishery, and some of those landings were higher around the time of the oil spill in the Gulf there. Did you see any effort from fishermen from the Gulf showing up in your area to fish, because they couldn't over there?

MR. HARTIG: Well, the effort, our guys fish a lot in the Gulf; rarely do we see Gulf come to the East Coast, it's a rare thing. I mean they have higher trip limits. It doesn't make much sense for them to come on our low trip limits. That is one thing I'll say for our fishermen, they fish under these low trip limits that they supported way back.

They fished on these trip limits when they couldn't catch the allocation and continued fishing on them, and now that they can they kind of would like to take advantage of it; and I see that. But still, the stock to me is in a state where we need to move some of those fish forward into the older ages and sizes, and then we'll be good.

Then I would be in the position, when we see a good year class coming, to be able to allow those fishermen to take advantage of it, because there is a selectivity difference in the fishery. The wintertime fishery is a trolling fishery. They catch smaller animals. The spring and summer fishery, a lot of live bait fishing, we catch bigger fish. They would be able to take better advantage if they could fish on those fish when they are smaller, up to about 12 pounds. You would like to see them on the years when you know you had the good recruitment.

You had a decent stock. If the middle wasn't missing in the stock right now, I would say with the new year class and if we could have that from the science say yes that's true. Then they could have higher catch levels. It is just right now I think we need to focus on the stock a little bit more. Sorry I lost it. Don't put me in the fishing mode; we'll get way off track. All right, is there any more discussion of this motion? Is there any objection to this motion? Seeing none; the motion is approved.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: Action 3 is the incidental catch allowance of Atlantic king mackerel caught in the shark gillnet fishery, so a little background on this. Prior to Amendment 20A, fishermen who participate in the shark gillnet fishery off the coast of Florida have commercial shark permits and commercial king mackerel permits.

They use gillnets, which is not a king mackerel approved gear. But before 20A they would sell the king mackerel that were caught in the shark gillnets, which is only two per person, with about three crew members onboard, so not that many fish. The fishermen asked that the council consider setting up some kind of incidental catch allowance so they can retain and sell those fish caught on the shark gillnet trips.

We have the no action alternative and then Alternative 2, which allows the retention and sale of the king mackerel caught with gillnet as incidental catch in the gillnet portion of the commercial shark fishery, for vessels that have valid shark directed commercial permit and a valid federal king mackerel commercial permit.

The king mackerel must be sold to a dealer with a Southeast Federal Dealer permit and for the shark gillnet trip off the EEZ of Florida. No more than two king mackerel per crew member can be onboard and sold from that trip, and for shark gillnet trips in the EEZ north of the Georgia/Florida line no more than three king mackerel per crew member can be onboard and sold from the trip.

Alternative 3 is identical to that except that it sets the limits based on Southern Zone and Northern Zone. For the Southern Zone it would be no more than two king mackerel per crew member onboard and that can be sold from the trip and Northern Zone it would be three. Just a note, the limits under Alternative 2 would be the same as how things were set up before 20B when you set up the Northern and Southern Zone, and it aligns with what the bag limits were.

That is what they were fishing under. Those were set for Florida and then for the rest of the region. But we're trying to move towards being consistent within our Northern Zone and Southern Zone, just to make things easier. That is what Alternative 3 would do; it would set the limits for all of the Southern Zone.

We don't have any fishermen participating in this in South Carolina and Georgia with the shark gillnets and selling the king mackerel, so it wouldn't affect anyone there, it would just make those regulations and the language slightly less complicated. The South Atlantic AP supported Alternative 3 as the preferred alternative, and the Gulf AP also supported Alternative 3.

Then when we did scoping, we had members of the public who, in general people supported allowing the incidental catch. These are commercial trips and as long as the vessels have the king mackerel commercial permit and a shark permit. There is a table in here, Table 6 that gives you a little information, including the number of participants with shark and king mackerel gillnet, when they could sell those under a bag limit. You can see there is a really small group of folks. There is probably little chance that anybody would take advantage of this.

MR. HARTIG: Questions for Kari? Zack, did you have something?

MR. BOWEN: Well, when she used the terms consistent with what we were doing, I'm trying to get back here. I'm prepared to make a motion with the presentation I've just seen. If the committee is wanting one.

DR. DUVAL: Just one thing to note, Kari, that there is an exemption for the use of gillnets north of Cape Lookout.

MR. BOWEN: I move we select Alternative 3 under Action 3.

MR. HARTIG: Seconded by Michelle. Further discussion? Is there any objection to this motion? Motion passes with one objection. All right Jack, you had a question?

MR. COX: Sure, I'm not on your committee, but I would just like to ask Chester why you objected to the motion.

MR. BREWER: I'll tell you privately.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: Can I have just a little more on the record about why you support it, Alternative 3?

MR. BOWEN: It was the preferred alternative for the South Atlantic AP and also the Gulf AP, and when you used the term consistent with what we're doing in our other regulations. I'm all about it.

DR. DUVAL: Yes, I think it is going to be easier having this consistent between the two zones, now that we've divided these between zones; so that's one thing. Then the other thing is, these are fish that are going to be dead anyway. The fishermen were previously allowed to do this; when we put 20A in place that disallowed bag limit sales.

Fishermen have had to discard those fish since then. I think we would like to avoid dead discards when at all possible. I think the levels that are allowed here, because they are exactly the same as what was allowed previously, it is not going to increase any catch and is certainly not going to create a directed fishery. The intent in here is to minimize dead discards.

MR HARTIG: I am going to ask the Chair. We're at the end of our time. How do you want to proceed? Do you want to do the rest at full council or do you want to try and proceed a little more today? There is some stuff that we're going to go through that is going to take some more time, I'm going to tell you up front right now. We can get through the Gulf actions within five minutes, so let's do the Gulf actions and then come back in Full Council and do the others if you want to stay on schedule.

DR. DUVAL: Yes, I think we can do that and then we can move into Data Collection, and if there is any extra time at Data Collection before lunch we could come back to Mackerel.

MR. HARTIG: Okay. Moving to Page where?

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: We are going to Action 6. We'll come back and talk about Actions 4 and 5, they are a little more complex. If you can scroll down in your document to Page 25, this

modifies the annual catch limit for Gulf king mackerel. They have three alternatives, a no action alternative. The Gulf Council preferred Alternative 2, which sets their ACL equal to the ABC recommended by the Gulf SSC.

You have those provided in the table there. Then Alternative 3, which establishes the constant catch scenario for the Gulf king mackerel annual catch limit for one of the time periods in Option A or B, and the ACL selected during those selected time periods may not exceed the ABC recommended by the Gulf SSC. The Gulf AP also recommended Alternative 2. Your committee actions are to add/remove any alternatives or options and possibly select a preferred alternative or options.

DR. DUVAL: I will go ahead and move that we select Alternative 2 as a preferred under Action 6.

MR. HARTIG: Second by Zack. Discussion. These are Gulf centric, they pertain to the Gulf. This is what they want to do and normally, we're in concurrent; normally, we're in concurrence with what they want to do. In this case we are. Is there any more discussion? Is there any objection to this motion? Seeing none; that motion is approved.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: The next action revises the commercial zone quotas for Gulf king mackerel. Because the management boundary is going to be revised in Action 1, basically what that does is it takes the Gulf Florida East Coast Subzone that was part of the Gulf management system, out of their allocations and opens up a little bit more of how their proportions work.

You have the no action alternative. Alternative 2 revises it by taking the Florida East Coast Subzones proportion and equally allocating it to the rest of the other zones for the Gulf. Alternative 3 takes the Florida East Coast Subzones proportion and reallocates it to each zone based kind of on their proportion of how much they held.

Then Alternative 4, which is the South Atlantic AP and Gulf AP recommended, it was actually proposed by the Gulf AP in March, and it sets it as 40 percent for the Western Zone, 18 for the Northern Zone and 21 percent each for the Southern Zone handline and gillnet. Table 10 shows you these percentages; and you see how they are compared to each other, so this is the current proportion under how this works.

Because the Florida East Coast is coming to Atlantic management instead of Gulf management, they are going to take that proportion and redistribute it. Alternative 2 is equal redistribution, Alternative 3 does it kind of based on what they already had, and Alternative 4 the Gulf AP proposed that and they basically were negotiating that.

They wanted to give the Northern Zone a little more, a little bigger chunk but still be sure that the other zones did have an increase that was fair. That is why you have these numbers that are a little different. Again, you can select a preferred and it is Alternative 4 which was recommended by the Gulf AP and the South Atlantic AP. The Gulf Council has not selected a preferred on this.

MR. HARTIG: Before we get there. I don't know that it is appropriate for us to choose a preferred before the Gulf does.

MR. BOWEN: I would make the motion that we do not pick a preferred at this time.

MR. HARTIG: We don't need a motion, but thank you for doing that. We've gone into some detail. A number of our fishermen are going to be impacted by how this goes, how this fish that comes from our area is added into the Gulf allocation scenario. Okay, Number 8.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: Number 8 looks more complicated than it is. You have, and this is on Page 28, so you have under all the alternatives except Alternative 1 where it says South Atlantic approved and Gulf approved. What happened is the Gulf had updated their language in each of those alternatives, so I wanted you guys to see what you okayed in September.

But I would like for you to approve these editorial changes that the Gulf made. It doesn't change what would actually happen, it is just the Gulf changed the way they wrote it. In Alternative 2, this would revise the recreational and commercial allocations for Gulf king mackerel, transferring 5, 10, or 20 percent in those options.

The Gulf has rewritten it. It still does the same thing, but it has rewritten it based on what the actual percentage would be. Alternative 3 revises the recreational and commercial allocations where it would transfer 2 or 5 percent annually until the recreational sector lands 80 percent of its allocation, and then it would stop doing that.

They are trying to set up these waves where over time they can kind of gauge how the reallocation is going, instead of just giving a chunk to the commercial. They are looking at this because the commercial ACLs in those zone quotas, they usually close early in season. The recreational, there are some recreational landings left on the table.

The next one is to transfer a certain percentage either 5, 10 or 20 percent from the recreational to the commercial until the recreational reaches a predetermined threshold, which are in Options B, E, and F; and then when that threshold is met, it would go back to what it is now, which is 68 percent recreational, 30 percent commercial. That is what you guys have written. The Gulf also added new Option C, so we will need you guys to review that and approve adding that in there.

Then Alternative 5 establishes a sunset provision, so making any changes to the sector allocations after a predetermined time period, the sector allocations would go back to what they are now; 68 percent recreational and 32 percent commercial. We have three options, which is 5, 10 and 15 year period. I have some tables and other information for that. In October the Gulf made some language changes to those alternatives, added Option C under Alternative 4. You guys would need to review that and track it.

The Gulf AP recommended that the Councils abstain from reallocating any king mackerel from the recreational sector to the commercial sector until they look at some additional options for utilizing that excess quota, such as increasing the bag limit. Then again at their November meeting they recommended Alternative 1, but if not, then Alternative 5, Option A; making sure that if there are any changes to the commercial recreational allocation that there is a sunset of five years put on that. What I would need for you guys to do is review and approve; adding Option C under Alternative 4 and then review and approve the Gulf changes to the language in Alternatives 2 through 5. Then you can select a preferred if you like.

DR. DUVAL: I move that we approve the Gulf Council changes to the language in Alternatives 2, 3 and 5 under Action 8.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: Can we make it Alternatives 2 through 5? I miswrote that; too many actions.

DR. DUVAL: Sure.

MR. HARTIG: The addition of Option C under Alternative 4 is included in that. Okay. As long as I'm clear. **I have a motion, second by Anna.** The motion is to approve the Gulf Council, well Michelle you already said it, right? Okay. Any discussion on this motion? Go ahead, Chester.

MR. BREWER: I would just point out that we've already had the discussion about the 50 or 60 percent of the recreational quota and this thing is moving towards 80 percent of the recreational quota, which causes me a little concern but not enough to vote against this.

MS. BECKWITH: Well, and I just wanted folks to take a quick read through this section, because this may be something that when we get to dolphin or some of the other discussions, this may be a framework that we can use to sort of do shares from commercial to recreational; not exactly the way they've worded it, but a starting point.

MR. BOWEN: Chris and I just had that same sidebar discussion, so yes point taken and noted.

MR. HARTIG: All right, any more discussion? Is there any objection to this motion? Noting Chester's comments, **the motion is approved without objection.** Okay, Action 9.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: Did you want to select a preferred under Action 8?

MR. HARTIG: No, we're not going to.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: Okay. Action 9 would modify the recreational bag limit for Gulf king mackerel. There is a no action alternative. The current bag limit is 2 fish per person per day. Alternative 2, which the Gulf AP recommended is increase the bag limit to 3 fish per person per day, and the Gulf Council preferred alternative is a bag limit of 4 fish per person per day.

We have Figure 11 here that shows you, this is the bag limit analysis, the number of king mackerel harvested per angler. Again, the Gulf selected Alternative 3, which is 4 fish per person per day and the AP recommended Alternative 2; 3 fish per person per day and recommended that there be no closed season for the recreational sector under any management measures. You can add or remove any alternatives and possibly select a preferred alternative.

DR. DUVAL: I move that we select Alternative 3 as a preferred under Action 9.

MR. HARTIG: Motion by Michelle, second by Charlie. Zack, did you have some discussion on this; you and Chris?

MR. BOWEN: Yes, sir. Just a personal feeling, I'm not sure I feel comfortable setting a Gulf's bag limit. I don't fish over there, don't have customers over there. I'm going to abstain.

DR. DUVAL: To that point. The Gulf Council has already selected this as their preferred, so we have to agree with whatever their preference is in order for this to move forward, so it is really more about the procedural thing.

MR. BOWEN: That's fine, thank you, I'll just abstain.

MR. HARTIG: I appreciate your concern.

MR. CONKLIN: Yes, I was just going to add the Gulf Council they voted on it when I was over there and it carried 13 to 3.

MR. HARTIG: I appreciate that.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: Some of the concern is that in the Gulf the duly permitted vessels are allowed to sell the bag limits of king mackerel off the charter trips. That was one of the concerns of setting it so high at 4.

MR. HARTIG: Okay, we're not going to get into their business. All right, is there any more discussion? Is there any objection to this motion? Seeing none; that motion is approved and that brings us to the end of what we're going to try and do this morning, so we'll have other business later.

(Whereupon, the meeting was adjourned at 10:45 o'clock a.m., December10, 2015.)

Transcribed By: Graham Transcriptions, Inc. January 2016

Certified By: _____ Date: _____

SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL 2015 - 2016 COMMITTEES (continued)

INFORMATION & EDUCATION

Mark Brown, Chair Charlie Phillips, Vice-Chair Anna Beckwith Chester Brewer Michelle Duval LTJG Tara Pray Staff contact: Amber Von Harten

KING & SPANISH MACKEREL

Ben Hartig, Chair
Michelle Duval, Vice-Chair
Anna Beckwith
Mel Bell
Zack Bowen
Chris Conklin
Roy Crabtree
Doug Haymans
Charlie Phillips Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative Mid-Atlantic Liaison, Tony DeLernia/Dewey Hemilright Staff contact: Kari MacLauchlin

LAW ENFORCEMENT

Mel Bell, Chair Mark Brown, Vice-Chair Anna Beckwith Zack Bowen Ben Hartig LTJG Tara Pray Staff contact: Myra Brouwer

PERSONNEL

Jessica McCawley, Chair Michelle Duval, Vice Chair Mel Bell Ben Hartig Doug Haymans Staff contact: Bob Mahood

PROTECTED RESOURCES

Wilson Laney, Chair Jessica McCawley, Vice-Chair Mark Brown Zack Bowen Jack Cox Michelle Duval LTJG Tara Pray Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative Staff contact: Chip Collier

SSC SELECTION

Charlie Phillips, Chair Wilson Laney, Vice-Chair Chris Conklin Chester Brewer Roy Crabtree Michelle Duval Staff contact: John Carmichael

SEDAR

Michelle Duval, Chair Chris Conklin, Vice-Chair Zack Bowen Mark Brown Ben Hartig Charlie Phillips Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative Staff contact: John Carmichael

SHRIMP

Charlie Phillips, Chair Mel Bell, Vice-Chair Jack Cox Roy Crabtree Wilson Laney Jessica McCawley Staff contact: Chip Collier

(Continued)

SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL 2015 - 2016 COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP

COUNCIL CHAIR

Dr. Michelle Duval NC Division of Marine Fisheries 3441 Arendell Street (PO Box 769) Morehead City, NC 28557 252/808-8011 (ph); 252/726-0254 (f) michelle.duval@ncdenr.gov

VICE-CHAIR

Charlie Phillips Phillips Seafood/Sapelo Sea Farms 1418 Sapelo Avenue, N.E. Townsend, GA 31331 912/832-4423 (ph); 912/832-6228 (f) <u>Ga capt@yahoo.com</u>

Robert E. Beal Executive Director Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission 1050 N. Highland St., Suite 200 A-N Arlington, VA 20001 703/842-0740 (ph); 703/842-0741 (f) rbeal@asmfc.org

Anna Beckwith 1907 Paulette Road Morehead City, NC 28557 252/671-3474 (ph) AnnaBarriosBeckwith@gmail.com

Mel Bell S.C. Dept. of Natural Resources Marine Resources Division P.O. Box 12559 (217 Ft. Johnson Road) Charleston, SC 29422-2559 843/953-9007 (ph) 843/953-9159 (fax) bellm@dnr.sc.gov Zack Bowen P.O. Box 30825 Savannah, GA 31410 912/398-3733 (ph) fishzack@comcast.net

W. Chester Brewer
250 Australian Ave. South
Suite 1400
West Palm Beach, FL 33408
561/655-4777 (ph)
WCBLAW@aol.com

Mark Brown 3642 Pandora Drive Mt. Pleasant, SC 29466 843/881-9735 (ph); 843/881-4446 (f) capt.markbrown@comcast.net

Chris Conklin P.O. Box 972 Murrells Inlet, SC 29576 843/543-3833 conklinsafmc@gmail.com

Jack Cox 2010 Bridges Street Morehead City, NC 28557 252/728-9548 Dayboat1965@gmail.com

Dr. Roy Crabtree Regional Administrator NOAA Fisheries, Southeast Region 263 13th Avenue South St. Petersburg, FL 33701 727/824-5301 (ph); 727/824-5320 (f) roy.crabtree@noaa.gov

Ben Hartig 9277 Sharon Street Hobe Sound, FL 33455 772/546-1541 (ph) mackattackben@att.net

SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL 2015 - 2016 COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP (continued)

Doug Haymans Coastal Resources Division GA Dept. of Natural Resources One Conservation Way, Suite 300 Brunswick, GA 31520-8687 912/264-7218 (ph); 912/262-2318 (f) doughaymans@gmail.com

Dr. Wilson Laney U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service South Atlantic Fisheries Coordinator P.O. Box 33683 Raleigh, NC 27695-7617 (110 Brooks Ave 237 David Clark Laboratories, NCSU Campus Raleigh, NC 27695-7617) 919/515-5019 (ph) 919/515-4415 (f) Wilson Laney@fws.gov

Jessica McCawley Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 2590 Executive Center Circle E., Suite 201 Tallahassee, FL 32301 850/487-0554 (ph); 850/487-4847(f) jessica.mccawley@myfwc.com LTJG Tara Pray U.S. Coast Guard 909 SE 1st Ave. Miami, FL 33131 tara.c.pray@uscg.mil

Deirdre Warner-Kramer Office of Marine Conservation OES/OMC 2201 C Street, N.W. Department of State, Room 5806 Washington, DC 20520 202/647-3228 (ph); 202/736-7350 (f) Warner-KramerDM@state.gov

MONICA SMIT-BRUNELLO BONNIE BUWITH JACK MEGOVERN SCOTT SANDORF ERIKA BURGESS KEVIN ANSON TRACY DUNN

SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL COUNCIL STAFF

Executive Director

✓ Robert K. Mahood robert.mahood@safmc.net

Deputy Executive Director

/ Gregg T. Waugh
gregg.waugh@safmc.net

Public Information Officer Kim Iverson kim.iverson@safmc.net

Fishery Outreach Specialist Amber Von Harten amber.vonharten@safmc.net

Senior Fishery Biologist Roger Pugliese <u>roger.pugliese@safmc.net</u>

Fishery Scientist Myra Brouwer myra.brouwer@safmc.net

Fishery Biologist √Dr. Mike Errigo mike.errigo@safmc.net

Fisheries Social Scientist / Dr. Kari MacLauchlin kari.maclauchlin@safmc.net

Fishery Scientist Chip Collier <u>Chip.Collier@safmc.net</u>

Staff Economist Dr. Brian Cheuvront brian.cheuvront@safmc.net Science and Statistics Program Manager John Carmichael <u>john.carmichael@safmc.net</u>

SEDAR Coordinators Dr. Julie Neer - <u>julie.neer@safmc.net</u> Julia Byrd – <u>julia.byrd@safmc.net</u>

Administrative Officer Mike Collins mike.collins@safmc.net

Financial Secretary Debra Buscher <u>deb.buscher@safmc.net</u>

Admin. Secretary /Travel Coordinator Cindy Chaya <u>cindy.chaya@safmc.net</u>

Purchasing & Grants / Julie O'Dell julie.odell@safmc.net



South Atlantic Fishery Management Council – December 2015 Council Meeting

Atlantic Beach, NC

Date: Thursday December 10, 2015

Committee: Mackerel

PLEASE SIGN IN -

In order to have a record of your attendance at each meeting and your name included in the minutes, we ask that you sign this sheet for the meeting shown above.

Name:	Mailing Address/E-mail: (If your information is currently on file, please check the box.)	How do you participate in South Atlantic fisheries? (Check all that apply)	
1000	U On File	Commercial 🗖	NGO 🗆
Clarke		Recreational	Govt. 🔲
		Charter/ For-hire □	Other Describe
Lita Dunma	On File	Commercial	
		Recreational	Govt. 🔲
		Charter/ For-hire □	Other Describe
Rick Hawking	1 On File USCG-	Commercial 🔲	
		Recreational 🗖	Govt.
		Charter/ D For-hire	Other Describe
Gretcher Martin	On File	Commercial 🔲	
		Recreational 🗌	Govt. 🗖
		Charter/ □ For-hire	Other Describe
	On File	Commercial	NGO 🔲
		Recreational 🔲	Govt. 🗆
		Charter/ 🗆 For-hire	Other Describe
	On File	Commercial 🔲	NGO 🗆
		Recreational 🗌	Govt. 🗖
		Charter/	Other
		Charter/	Describe

COUNCIL MTG DAY 4

10 Dec 15

Last Name Mumford Alvarado Austin Bademan Bailey Baker Ballenger Bianchi Bissette Black Black Bonura Brady Brennan Bresnen Byrd Clarke DeVictor Desfosse Dukes Erwin Froeschke Gerhart Gore Hadley Helies Hesselman Hudson Hudson Iverson Johnson Knowlton L Lee Levy Lindh **MCCallum** Malinowski Markwith Martin Mehta

First Name Nicolas Anthony Martha Adam Scott Joey Alan Jesse Michael Michael Vincent Bonnie Ken Anthony Julia Lora Rick Joseph Amy Gwen John Susan Karla John Frank Don Rusty Mary Kim Denise Kathy 1 Jennifer Mara Ryan James Rich Anne Gretchen Nikhil

Email Address Doug Mumford doug.mumford@ncdenr.gov Nicolas.Alvarado@noaa.gov redress@ec.rr.com martha.bademan@myfwc.com adam.bailey@noaa.gov bakers@uncw.edu ballengerj@dnr.sc.gov Alan.Bianchi@ncdenr.gov jlbissette13@gmail.com mike@floribbeansea.com mblack54@bellsouth.net SailRaiser25C@aol.com greenfluke@optonline.net kenneth.brennan@noaa.gov anthony.bresnen@myfwc.com julia.byrd@safmc.net Iclarke@pewtrusts.org rick.devictor@noaa.gov joseph.desfosse@noaa.gov DukesA@dnr.sc.gov gwen.erwin@myfwc.com john.froeschke@gulfcouncil.org susan.gerhart@noaa.gov karla.gore@noaa.gov john.hadley@ncdenr.gov fchelies@verizon.net don.hesselman@ncdenr.gov DSF2009@aol.com mhudson@gmri.org kim.iverson@safmc.net denise.johnson@noaa.gov kathy.knowlton@dnr.ga.gov captaindrifter@bellsouth.net Jennifer.Lee@noaa.gov mara.levy@noaa.gov nativetrade@bellsouth.net jimmccall@mindspring.com rich.malinowski@noaa.gov anne.markwith@ncdenr.gov gbmartin71@gmail.com nikhil.mehta@noaa.gov

Merrifield Mitchell Muhammad Package-Ward Raine Records Reichert Roberts Schalit Sedberry Smith Stafford holiman pugliese rindone sandorf smart vara Brown Buckson FARMER Herndon Mansfield Smith Steamer С custer

Mike W Ernest Christina Karen David Marcel Claire David George Scott Pete stephen roger ryan scott tracey mary Angela Bruce NICK Andrew Bill Myron Donald m carl

mikem@wildoceanmarket.com warren.mitchell@noaa.gov Muhammade@dnr.sc.gov christina.package-ward@noaa.gov karen.raine@noaa.gov david.records@noaa.gov Reichertm@dnr.sc.gov claire.roberts@gulfcouncil.org dschalit@gmail.com george.sedberry@noaa.gov scott.smith@ncdenr.gov spstafford@gmail.com stephen.holiman@noaa.gov roger.pugliese@safmc.net ryan.rindone@gulfcouncil.org scott.sandorf@noaa.gov smartt@dnr.sc.gov mary.vara@noaa.gov brownac@dnr.sc.gov bruce@buckson.net nick.farmer@noaa.gov Andrew.Herndon@noaa.gov billman@ec.rr.com myronsmith@nc.rr.com b001936@gmail.com mec181@yahoo.com carlswholesale@yahoo.com